BY-LAW NO24-01

a by-law relating generally to the transaction of the afairs of MOUNT ALLISON FEDERATED ALUMNI, INC.

Approved and Enacted By Board of Directors February 4, 2024

a b. 16. «

Amended on:

Feb. 16, 2025 - Revised Art cle 4.6

BE IT ENACTED as a by-law of the MOUNT ALLISON FEDERATED ALUMNI, INC. (the Corporat on):

1. **DEFINITIONS**

(a) "Act" means the Ac / C a $e \times$ / C "

Page 1

3.5 Chair

The President or, in the President's absence, the Vice-President or any other Director authorized by the meet ng, shall chair meet ngs of the membership.

3.6 Place and Format

- (a) The date, t me, location, and format of meetings of Members shall be determined by the Board.
- (b) Meet ngs of Members may be held:
 - i. With all members at ending in person, at a locat on determined by the Board;
 - ii. With all members at ending virtually, by telephonic or electronic communications means; or
 - iii. As a hybrid meet ng, where part cipants may at end in person or by virtually by telephonic or electronic means.
- (c) A Member who establishes a communications link to a virtual or hybrid meeting, where all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, is deemed to be present at the meeting.

3.7 Not ce

Not ce of meet ngs of Members shall

3.9 Vot ng

- (a) Each Member shall be entitled to 1 vote on each question arising at any meeting of Members.
- (b) At all meetings of Man hers every question shall be dec \$

4.4 Selec

4.7 Dut es of Vot ng Directors

Voting Directors, including Of cers, shall:

- (a) Abide by the By-laws, code of conduct, confict of interest and other policies established and approved by the Board.
- (b) Carry out dut es and responsibilit es as established by the Board and Board Commit ees.

4.8 Execut ve Director

- (a) The Director of Alumni Engagement, Mount Allison University, shall serve as the Execut ve Director of the Alumni Associat on.
- (b) Should there be a change in job t tle or role of the posit on designated for Execut ve Director, the Board shall ident fy an equivalent posit on and such posit on shall be granted the role of Execut ve Director.
- (c) The Executive Director shall be responsible for managing the day-to-day activities of the Corporation and will act as a liaison between the Board and the University.

4.9 Removal of Director

- (a) The Board may recommend that the Members remove a Director, through a resolut on receiving at least two-thirds majority vote of all Directors, if the Director:
 - i. has not fulfilled the duties of a Director; or
 - ii. has acted in a manner contrary to terms of a Code of Conduct or other policies inst tuted by the Board.
- (b) The Members can remove any Director before the end of the Director's term through the adopt on of a mot on at an Annual General Meet ng or Special Meet ng of Members that passes with a two-thirds majority of Members present at the meet ng.
- (c) Not ce that a mot on will be made to remove a Director must be included in the not ce for the meet ng of Members delivered in accordance with Art cle 3.7.

4.10 Automat cally Vacated

The of ce of Director shall be automat cally vacated:

- (a) if a Director is absent from 3 consecutive Board meetings without leave granted by the President;
- (b) if a Director resigns his or her of ce by delivering a writ en resignat on to the President or Vice-President and Secretary;
- (c) if a Director becomes bankrupt; or
- (d) on death.

4.11 Quorum

Seven (7) vot ng Directors shall const tute a quorum for the transact on of business at any Directors' meet ngs.

4.15 Prowers and Responsibilities

- (a) The Board may make decisions regarding the management of the af airs of the Corporat on which the law allows unless its governing legislat on or the By-laws require a meet ng of Members to decide on a specific mat er.
- (b) Subject to the Act and the By-Laws, the Board may make, enact, repeal, alter, amend, and add to all such By-laws, policies, landter, ocedur b)

5

5.1 Of cers

The Of cers shall be:

- (a) President
- (b) Vice President and Secretary
- (c) Past President
- (d) Honorary President

5.2 Eligibility of Of cers

- (a) All Of cers shall be Members of the Corporat on.
- (b) The President, Vice President and Secretary, and the Past President shall be Directors at the time of their election.

5.3 Select on, Nominat on and Elect on of Of cers

- (a) The Nominat on Commit ee shall oversee the process to ident fy and select eligible Of cers.
- (b) The Nominat ng Commit ee shall recommend a list of nominees to f II Of cer posit ons, and the Board shall vote to approve the report of the Nominat ng Commit ee for elect on at the Annual General Meet ng.
- (c) The Members shall elect new Of cers at the Annual General Meeting in accordance with Article 3.10 of the By-Laws.

5.4 Term of Of ce

- (a) The President, Vice President and Secretary, and the Past President shall be elected for a term of two years, and will not be eligible for re-elect on to the same position.
- (b) The Honorary President shall be elected for a term of two years and shall be eligible for re-elect on for one addit onal term of two years.

5.5 Vacancies

When there is a vacancy before the expirat on of an Of cer's term:

- (a) The Board may appoint an eligible person to the positions of President, Vice President and Secretary, and Honorary President for the remainder of the term of the former Of cer's term.
- (b) Where the vacant position is Past President, it shall remain vacant until the expiration of the current President's term.

5.6 Removal of Of cers

- (a) The Board can remove an Of cer through the adopt on of a mot on at a Board meet ng that passes with more than 50% of all Directors.
- (b) Not ce must be given to all Directors of a proposed decision to remove an Of cer with the not ce of the meet ng.

5.7 Dutes of Of cers

- (a) All Of cers shall be required to perform their dut es as Directors during their term as Of cers and shall perform such other dut es as required by By-law and as may be assigned by the Board and/or its Commit ees.
- (b) All Of cers shall be members of the Executive Commit ee.

6. <u>COMMITTEES</u>

- 6.1 Purpose and Structure of Commit ees
 - (a) The Board may set up Standing and Special Commit ees as it determines necessary each year to assist in the management of af airs of the Corporat on.
 - (b) The Chair of each Commit ee shall be a Director.
 - (C)

7. GENERAL

7.1 Head Of ce

The head of ce of the Corporat on shall be in Tantramar, New Brunswick.

7.2 By-Law Amendments

- (a) By-laws may be amended or repealed at any meet ng of the Board with approval of more than 50% of the Directors present.
- (b) All by-laws enacted, amended, or repealed by the Board are effective on the date approved.
- (c) Any by-laws enacted, amended, or repealed by the Board shall be provided to Members at the next Annual or Special Meet ng.
- (d) No amendment to the by-laws of the